CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Ibulls Sales Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Ibulls Sales Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the
“Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the loss and other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (“SAs™). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s
Directors’ report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstaternent of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs {financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also inciudes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole,
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such _controls.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our anditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal controi that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the ‘“Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has not paid / provided any remuneration to its directors during the year
ended March 31, 2020,

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Ruie 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.
i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

1ii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration h@{6827N

R

ul Mukhi
%Y Partner
\w_/b‘f’/ Membership No.099719
Gurugram, Haryana, June 29, 2020

UDIN: 20099719AAAABB1315
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Annexure A to the Independent Aunditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Ibulls Sales Limited for the year ended March 31, 2020

Report on the statement of matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
(1) In respect of its Fixed Assets:

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets;

(b) These fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals in
accordance with a regular programme of verification. According to the information and explanation
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

(¢) The Company does not own immovable properties.

(ii) The Company does not have any inventories; accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ii) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iti) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted loans
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into
transactions in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security, covered under section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(v) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (v) are not applicable to the
Company.

{vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 Companies Act, 2013 to
the products/services of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (vi) are not applicable
to the Company.

(vii) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state
insurance, income-tax, sales tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities, to the extent applicable to it.
There are no arrears of outstanding statutory dues as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payabie.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not have any dues of
income tax or sales tax or goods and service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added
tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.
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(viii} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not have any dues
in respect of foans or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or government or dues to debenture
holders.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised moneys
raised by way of public issue, follow-on offer (including debt instruments) and term loans, during the
year under audit,

(x) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers/ employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not paid or provided
any managerial remuneration in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) are not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of Companies Act, 2013 to the
extent applicable and the details have been disclosed in Note 34 to the Financial Statements as
required by the accounting standards and Companies Act, 2013.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment / private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the
year under review,

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016827N

it riprg .
Seid AECOIRL, utf_-; b ul Mukhi
' Partner

v -:53‘5; Membership No.099719
P Gurugram, Haryana, June 29, 2020

UDIN: 20099719AAAABBI315
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Ihulls Sales Limited for the year ended March 31, 2020

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Ibulis Sales Limited (“the
Company™) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (“ICAI”}. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Iinancial Statements and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Financial Statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed io provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial conirol over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that:

(1) pertain to the mainfenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of conirols, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these Financial Statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31,
2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. Q16827N
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Pariner

Membership No.099719
Gurugram, Haryana, June 29, 2020
UDIN: 20099719AAAABB1315
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Ibulls Sales Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020
All amonnts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated

Particulars

Assets

Non-current assets

{a) Property, plant and equipment
(b) Deferred tax assets (net)

Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i) Investiments
(i1) Cash and cash equivalents
{b) Current tax assets {net)
{c) Other current assets

Total Assets

Equity and Liabilities
Equity

(a) Equity share capital
{b) Other equity

Total Equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Long-term Provisions

Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities
(b) Other current liabilities
{c) Short-term Provisions
{d) Current tax liabilities (Net)

Total Equity and Liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

As at
March 31,2019

150.74
731.80

882.54

1,07,638.09
449,77
72.99
8,196.21

1,16,357.06

1,17,239.60

500.00
1,12,293.05%

1,12,793.05

2,719.76

2,719.76

17.50
613.18
72.80
1,023.31

1,726.79

. . As at
Note No. March 31,2020
3 133.74
4 686.12
819.86

s .

s 1,02,857.51

] -

; 8,135.39
1,10,992.90
1,11,812,76

0 500.00

0 1,07,201.74
1,07,701.74

» 2,654.83

2,654.83

12 )

= 1,032.07

1 70.41

s 353.71

1,456.19
1,11,812.76

2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our repoit of even dale

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registragion No.016827N

QWY

i

Rahul Mukhi

Partner

Membership No. 099719
Gurugram, June 29, 2020

1,17,239.60

For and on behalfigf the Board of Directors of

1bufls Yales Limite! ‘\)

TR

08184120

New Delhi, June 29, 2020

[ﬁjiiiﬁ2>
“Ravi Dutt Sharma

Director
DIN : 07162530



ibulls Sales Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020

Al amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated

il
HI

v

Vi

Vi

Vil

IX

XI
X1

Particulars

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total Income (I+1H)

Expenses

Employee benefit expenses

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Other expenses

Tota! Expenses {1V)

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (HI-1V)
Exceptional items
Profit/(loss) before tax (V-VI)

Tax expense

(1) Currest tax

(2) Tax expenses carlier years
Net Current tax

(3} Deferred tax
Income tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year (VH-VIIH

Other Comprehiensive Income

A. Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss:
(i) Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
(ii} Income tax cffect

Subtotal (A)

B. Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Sabtotal (B)

Other Compreheasive Income / (Loss) (A+B)

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year (IX+X)

Earnings per equity share
{1} Basic (in INR)
{2) Diluted {in INR)

Summary of significant accounting policics

ror the year ended

For the year ended

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fiuenciad statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred 1o 1n ot npont of wven dale

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration %GSZ'N

Rahul Mukhi

Parincr ,/

Membership No. 099719
Gurugram, une 29, 2020

Chartered

Accoumiants

~ur and op behaif of ke

New Dehi, June 29, 2020

Note Nu. Marech 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Io - 2,71,500.00
17 6,315.73 8,178.72
0,315.73 2,79,678.72
i8 10,786.00 17,603.58
19 49.31 i,081.65
17.00 17.00
20 203.91 2,40,214.12
11,056.22 2,58,916.35
(4,740.49) 20,762.37
(4,740.49) 20,762.37
21
- 6,219.53
61.82 (1.67)
61.82 6,217.86
106.92 (83.28)
168.74 6,134.58
(4,909.23) 14,627.79
(243.32) {161.16}
61.24 4483
(182.68) (116.33)
{182.08) (116.33)
(5,091.31) 14,511.46
35
(98.18) 292.56
(98.18) 292.56
2

ard of Directors of

“Ravi Dutt Sharma
Director
DIN : 07162530



Ibulis Sales Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31,2020
All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A Cash flow from operating activities :
Net Profit/ (Loss) for the year before tax: (4,740.49) 20,762.37
Adjustments for:
Interest income - {52.76)
Profit on redemption of mutual funds (6,193.38) (7.881.04)
Unrealised Income / Gain on Current Investments - (163.09})
Batances written back (28.48) (81.83)
Provision for compensated absences no longer required, writlen back (93.87) -
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 476.72 517.66
Depreciation 17.00 17.00
Operating profit before working capital changes {10,562.50) 13,118.31
Changes in working capital;
Other current assets 60.82 5,450.36
Provisions (693.49) (72.87)
Other financial liabilities {17.50) 17.50
Other current linbilities 447.37 {1,182.32)
Cash generated from/(used in) eperations (10,765.30) 17,330.98
Direct taxes (paid)/refund (net) (731.42) {14,030.18)
Net cash generated frem/(used in} operating activities {11,496.72) 3,300.80
B Cash flow from investing activities
Interest received 72.99 94.33
{Investment in)/Proceeds {rom redemption of units of mutual funds {net) 1,13,831.47 {99.593.97)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activitics 1,13,904.46 (99,499.604)
C Cash flow from financing activities
Net cash generated from/{used in) financing activities - -
D Net increase / {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ( A+B+C) 1,02,407.74 (96,198.84)
I Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 449.77 96,648.61
F Cash and cash equivalents st the close of the year ( I} + E ) {Refer Noie: 6] 1,02,857.51 449,77
Summary of significant accounting policies (Refer Note 2)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finaacial statements
This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date
For Ajay Sardana Associates For and og behalf of the, Bogrd of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Ibulls SalgpLimited

Chartered

Aecountants

Partner
Membership No. 099719
Gurugram, June 29, 2020

»

o~ Ravi Dutt Sharma
Director
DIN : 07162530



Ibulis Sales Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended Muarch 31, 2020
(All amount in Rs.thousands , unless stated otherwise)

{A) Equity share capital

Particulars Equity Shares
Number Amount
As at Aprit 01, 2018 50,000 500.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
As at March 31, 2019 50,000 500.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
As at March 31, 2020 50,000 500.0¢
(B) Other Equity
. Reserves and Surplus Other comprehensive
Description . . . Total
Retained earnings income
Balance as at April 01, 2018 97,781.59 - 97,781.59
Profit /(Loss) for the year 14,627.79 {116.33) 14,511.46
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans through
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) (116.33) 116.33 i
Balance as at March 31, 2019 1,12,293.05 - 1,12,293.05
Profit /{Loss) for the year (4,909.23) (182.08) (5,091.31)
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans through
Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) (182.08) 182.08 -
Balance as at Mavrch 31, 2020 1,07,201.74 - 1,07,201.74

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity as referred to in our report of even date

For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf df the Beard of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ~lbulls Sales Limite ‘\)
Firm Registration No.016827N 7

' s

Chartered

Accoantaniy

Rahul Mukhi jay Siwach : vi Dutt Sharma
Partner Director
Membership No. 899719 : 08184120 DIN : 07162530

Gurugram, June 29, 2020 New Delhi, June 29, 2020




Thulls Sules Limited
Netes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
Al amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated

Note -1
Corporate information:

Ibufls Sales Limited (“the Company™), was incorperated as Fast Loans Services Limited on Qctober 9, 2006 vide registration No.: U67100DL2006PLEC 54666,
The Company is primarily engaged in acting as commission agent and providing related business auxilliary services .

In accordance with the provisions of Section 2 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the members of the company at their Exteaordinary
General Meeting held on March 09, 2010, accerded their approval to change the name of the Company. The Company has since received fresh certificate of
incorporation consequent upots change of name, from the Registrar of Companies, National Capital Territory of Defhi & Haryana, dated March 11, 2010.
Accordingly, the name of the Company was changed from Fast Loans Services Limited to Indiabulls Sales Limited. Further in accordance with the provisions of
Section 21 and other applicable provistons of the Companies Act, 1956, the members of the company at their Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 12,
2010, accorded their approval to change the name of the Company. The Company has since received fresh certificate of incorporation consequent upon change of
name, from the Registrar of Companies, Nationat Capital Territory of Dethi & Haryana, dated March 16, 2010. Accordingly, the name of the Company was
changed from Indtabulls Sajes Limited to Ibulls Sales Limited.

Note -2
Summary of significant aceounting poficies:

i) General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial staiements (‘financial statements’) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards as netified under
section £33 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 (by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA”)). The
Company has unifoninly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Directors on fune 29, 2020.
ii) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in Indian Ropee which is the funcional currency of the Company. These financial statements have been prepared
an historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured a1 fair value or amortized cost at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the sccounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goads and services. Fair
value s the price that would be received to sefl an asset or paid to transfer a liabifity in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect method.

it} Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these ind AS financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affeet the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results mnay differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumplions are
reviewed on an engoing Dasis, Revisions (o accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Estumnation of uncertainties refating to the globat health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-19}

The Company has considered the possible effects that imay result from the pandenmic relating to COVID-19 on its business operations and financial position,
iv) Revenue recognition:

Revenrue is recognized upon transfer of control of services {“performance oblipations™) to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company has
received or expects {o receive in exchange for these services (“transaction price”™). When there is uncertainty as to colfectability, revenue recognition is postponed
undil such unceriainty is resoived.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the censideration, adjusted for volume discounts, rebates, scheme allowances, price concessions,
incentives, and returns, if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers, Revenue excludes taxes coliected from customers on behalf of the government,
Accruals for discountsfincentives and returns are estimated {using the most likely method) based on accumulated experience and underlying schemes and
agrreements with customers.

The Company has adopted Ind AS — 115 Revenue from contracts with customers, with effect {from st April, 2018. Ind AS - [15 establishes principles for
reporting information about the nature, amouny, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from the contracts with its customers and replaces Ind
AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts.

The Company has adopted Ind AS — 1135 using the cumulative effect method whereby the effect of applying this standard is recognized at the dase of imnial
application {i.e. Ist April, 2018). Accordingly, the comparative information in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss is not restated. impact on adoption of
ind A5 - 115 is not material.

Dividend income is recarded when the right to receive payment is gstablished. Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
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1hulls Sales Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

v) Provisions and contingent Liabilities
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to

settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to retlect the current best
estimates.

Contingent Habilities are disclosed when there is a possibic obligation arising from past events, (he existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or nor-accurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises ftom past events where
it is either not probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent
assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the ficancial statements.

vi} Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a conlsact is, of contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an ideniified
asset for a period of time in exchanpe for consideration.

Company a5 a lessee

The Cempany applies 2 singte recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and feases of low-value assets. The Company
recognizes ease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(i} Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assets)

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the Jease (i.e., the date the underlying asset 15 available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of.use assets
includes the amount of fease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and icase payments made at or before the commencement date fess any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorler of the lease term and the estimated usefu! lives of the assets. If
ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company ai the end of the lease term or the cost refects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calcutaled
using the estimated useful life of the asset.

{ii} Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payiments to be made over the jease term.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, vanable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The leasé payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for fenuinating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the
option o terminate. Variable fease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition thai triggers the payment occuss. In caleulating the present value of lease payments, the
Company uses its incrementai borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the Jease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease Habilities is increased 10 reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the jease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease Habilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the {ease term, a change in the lease payments (e.., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rale used 1o determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset. Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash
flows.

iii) Shori-ferm feases and leases of low-value assets

The Company appligs the short-term [2ase recognition exempiion to its short-term leases (i.c., those leases shat have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applics the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption te leases of office equipment that
are considered 1o be low value. Lease payments on shori-term leases and leases of low-value assels are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease terin.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantiatly all the risks and rewards incidental 1o ownership of an asset are classified as operating feases. Rental
income arising is accounted for on a steaight-ling basis over the lease terms, Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the fease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in
the period in which they are earned.

vii} Cost recognition
Costs and expenses are recogrised when incurred and have been classified according te their nature.

viii} Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rates prevaiting on the date of the tsansaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities are retransialed at the exchange rate prevailing on the Lalance sheet dule and exchange pains and Josses arising on settlement and restatement are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are nof
retransiated.
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[bulls Sales Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

ix) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and fhe net change in the deferred fax asset or liability during the year, Current and defzrred taxes are
recogmised in statement of profit and loss, except when they refme to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred (ax are aiso recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred income taxes
Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable
temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the
transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it Is prebable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unased tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates expected te apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary
differeaces are expected te be received or settled.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, 1o the extent it would be available for set off against
future current income tax liability, Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is
probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

x} Financial instruments
I.  Financial assets

Enitial Recognition and Measarement

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are initially measured at fair
valye. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss)
are added 1o or deducted [rom the fair value measured on initial recognition of finzncial asset.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily conventible into known amounts of cash that are subject 10 an insignificant risk
of change in value and baving original maturitics of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of
balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Subsegquent

Measurement

Financizl Assets measured at amortized cost: Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost :f these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is to hold these assets to collect contractuat cash flows and the contractual tenms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets measured at Fair value through otlier comprehensive income: Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principat amount culstanding and selking financial assets.

The Company has made an irrevacable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of equity investments not held for trading in other comprehensive
meome.

Financial Assets measures at Foir value through profit or loss: Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly altributable 1o the acquisition of
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in statemnent of profit and joss.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument s a contract that evidences residual interest it the assets of the Company after deducting afl of its liabilities. Equily instruments issued by
the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net of direct issue cost,

Empairment of Financial Asset

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial assct or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit
fosses 1o be measured through o toss allowance, In determining the allowances for doubiful trade reccivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by
computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit toss
experience and is adjusted for forward leoking information. The expected credit loss alfowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and
allowance rates used in the provision matrix. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-months expected
credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial
Tecognition.

Dercecognition
The Company derecognises a financial asset onfy when the contractual rights to the cush flows from the asset expire, oF when it transfers the financtal asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entily. /g%ﬁ A P
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1buls Sales Limited
Notes ta the fingncial stnlements for the year eaded 31 March 2020

AR amounts in

Thousands, unless othenvise slated

x) Financial inslruments (contineed):

Financial Liabitities

Inilel recogaition and wieasurement

Financial ligbilities are classified, a1 inigial recognition, as financial labilities a fair vakie through profit or doss, borowings, payalies, o as derdvatives designated as hedging instramenls
in an effecsive hedge, as appropriate. Al financial Habilities are recognized innially & fads value and, in the case of borsowiags and pavables, set of direetly atiriburable transaction costs.
“The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payvables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financtal Habilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial fiabikities al amortized cost
Alier imitial . sugh financial Babiti

s ahe subsequently weasured al amortized coq using the EM methad. Gains and losses are i profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as wedt as through the EIR amorization process Amortized cast i3 calealired by taking into account any discount or premiun: on acquisition and feos or costs that are an

integral part of the ELR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the profit or loss. This category generally applies 1o trade payables and other contraciual liabilitaes.

Finuncial linbilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financiat liabiities a1 fair value (hrough profit or foss inchude linancial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initiat recognition as at fair value theough profit
aor foss. Financial Babilities are clnssificd as held for iradmg if they are incuered for the purposc of repurchasing in the near tenn. This category also includes desivative financial
imstrumens entered into by the Company thet are not designated as hedgimg instruments in bedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109,

CGains of losses on Habilitics held for trading arc recopnized in the profit or loss.

Tinancial liabiltics designated upon inittal recaguition at {3ir value through profit or loss are designated at the initiaf date of recognition. and only if the eriteria in Ind AS 109 ure
salisfied. For labilities designated as FVTPL, faf value gainsflosses sitributable to changes ik own credit risk arc recognized in OCE These gains/tosses are ol subsequently transferred
te profit amnd Joss, However, the Company may trassfer the cumulative gain or less within equity. AR other changes in fair value of such liability are recogrized in the statoment of profit
or loss. The Company has nol designated any financial Habifity as at fair value theough profit and loss

Derecopnition
A financial liability is derccognized when the obligation under the Tiability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same

fender on suhstantialiy differest terms, or the terms of an existing Hability are substantially modificd, such an exchange or madification is reated as the derecognition of the onginal
fiability and the recogrition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in ¢he statement of profit or loss

xi) Investment in subsidizries
Investment in subsidiaties are measured at cost less impairment loss, ifany.

xii) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are siated at cost comprising of purchase price and any initial diceerly atinburable cost of bringing the asser to its working condition foc its intended vse,
iess accurmulated depreciation (ether than freebold jand) and impairment foss, iFany.

Depregiation is provided for property, plant and equipinent on & sseaiahl Hae basis 0 25 0 exponse the cost less residual value over their estimated usefid lives based on a technical

evatuation. The estimated useful fives and residual value ase reviewed al the end of eack reparting periad, with the eflect of any change in estimate accounted for o a prospective basis.

The estimated uselul lives are as mentioncd below:

[ype of asset Tisetul lives |
{Fumiture and Bxtures i[5 yeurs

Assets beld under firance lease are depresiated over the shorter of the lease term and their uselud Jives.
Depreciation s nof recorded on capial work-in-propress umil construction and installation is complere and the asset 1 ready Tor s intended use

xiii) Intaugilide assets
Intangible assels purchased are measured at cost as of the date of acquisition, as applicable, jess accinmufated amortisation and accumulated impaisment, if any.

Infangible assets cousist of vights under licensing agresmant and software licences which are amortised over heense perfod which equares the usefid Bife ranging between 2-5 years on a
straight line basis over the peniod of ity economic usellt life.

xiv) impairment of Non-financial aysets

Tangible 2nd intangibie assets

Property, jiant and equipment and inlangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication (hat sheir carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (ic. higher of the fir vaiue less cost to selt and the value-in-use) is defermined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not
generale cash flows (hat are fargely independent of 1hose from other assets. ln such cascs, the recoverable amount is detormined for the Cash Geserating Unit (CGU} to which the assot
belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated 1o be less than it carrying amount, the carrying amoust of the asset {or CGU) is redeeed to its cecoverable amount, An
impairment loss is secognised in the siztement of profit and loss.
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Ebulis Sales Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the yenr ended 31 March 2020

av) Employee benefils

(i) Defined benefit pians

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carned out at each
balance sheet date. Remeasurement, comprising actuariat gains and josses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan assets (excluding
interest}, is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recogrised in other comprehensive income in the peried in which (hey occur, Past
service cost, both vested and unvested, is recognised as an expense at the earlier of (a} when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs; and (b) when the entity
recegnises related restructuring costs or termination benefits.

The retérement berefit obligations recopnised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligations reduced by the fair value of
scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme,

(ii} Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as expense when emplayees have rendered services entitling them 1o such benefits.

{#ii} Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries,
wapes elc. and (he expected cost of ex-gratia are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected 1o be paid when there is 2 present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

(iv) Compensated absences

Compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are
recognised as undiscounted liability at the balance sheet date. Compensated absences which are nal expecied 10 occur within twelve months after the end of the
period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as an actuarially determined liability at the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date.

xvi} Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit or loss atiributable to equity shasehelders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding duning the year. The Company did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the years presented.

xvii) Segment reporting:

The Company ideatifies primary segmenls based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns and the internal organisation and management structure. The
operating segments are the segments for which separale financial information is available and for which operating prefit/loss amounts are evalualed regularly by
the executive management in deciding how to allocale resources and in assessing performance.

xviii) Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“"MCA™} notifies new standards or amendments 1o the existing standards. There is no such netification which would have been
applicable from April 1, 2020.
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Ibulls Sales Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Al amounts in Rs. Thousands, unfess otherwise stated

Note:3

Property, plant and equipment

Furniture and

fixtures Total
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at Aprit 01, 2018 170.00 170.60
Additions - -
Disposals/assets written off - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 170.00 170.00
Additions - -
Disposals/assets written off - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 170.00 170.00
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 01, 2018 2.26 2.26
Charge for the year 17.00 17.00
Adjustments - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 19.26 19.26
Charge for the year 17.00 17.00
Adjustments - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 36.26 36.26
Balance as at 3t Mareh 2019 150.74 150.74
Balance as at 31 March 2020 133,74 133.74

(this space has intentionally been lefi blank)
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thulls Sales Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(AH apount in Rs.thousands , widess stated otherwise)

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Nete:d
DPeferred tax assets (Net)
Beferred tax asscts
Arising on account of temporary differences due to:
Disatlowance under Section 40A(7) of the Income Tax Act, 1964 552.96 603.85
Disaflowance under Section 431 of the income Tax Act, 1961 132.93 173.05
Praperty, plant and equipment 0.23 (.29
686.12 T77.19
Deferred tax Habilities
Arising on account of temporary differences due to:
Fair valuation of {financisl instruments - 4537
- 45.37
As per Balance Sheet 686.12 731.80

Movement in deferred tax balances
31 March 2020

. Recognised in
Balance ason I April  Recognised in Profit Other

Particulars Balance as on 31

A 2019 and loss Comprelicnsive March 2020
Income

Property, plant and equipmert 029 0.05 - 0623

[Disallowance under Section 40A¢7) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 603.85 12 12 61 94 557 06

Disallowance under Section 438 of the Income Tax Aet, 1961 173.05 40.12 - 132,93

Fair valuation of financial instruments (45.37) {45.37) - -

Total 731.80 186.92 61.24 686.12

31 March 2619

Recognised in

Particulars Balance as on ] April  Recognised in Profit Other Balance as on 31
' 2018 and toss Comprehensive March 2019
Income

Propenty, plant and equipmest 1.23 (.94 - G.29
Disailowange under Section 40A{7} of the Income Tax Act, 1961 456,77 (102.24) 4% 603 85
Disailowance under Section 431 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 145.70 (27.35) - 173.05
Fair valuation of financial instruments - 4537 - {45.37)
Total 603.69 (83.28) 44.83 731.80
Tax losses for which no deferred tax assets has been recognized:
Expiry financial vear (as per Income tax Act)
Einused tax business losses
Purticutars As at March 31,2020 Ay at March 31, 2000

1 April 2028 - 31 March 2029 4,743.90 -
Unused tax Unabsorbed depreciation
Unabsorbed depreciation for indefinite period 0.02 -

As at As at
Moarch 31, 202¢ March 31. 2019

Note:3
Investments

Current (Unquoted, Noa Trade)
Al fair vajue through Profit and Loss
Investments in Muwtoal Funds
Indiabuils Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth - 1.07,116.63
{No.of Units Nil {Previous year: 58681.918) NAV Rs. Nil (Previcus

year: Rs, 1.825.3771)]

{ndiabulls Savings Fund - Direct Plan-Growth - 521.46
[No.of Units Nal {Previous year: 499.707) NAV Rs, Nil (Previous
year: Rs. 1,043.5343)]

As per Balance Sheet

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

%{ Hartereg (U7 - 1,07,638.09
PO T . 1.07.638.00



Fhulls Sales Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Al amount in Rs.thousands | unless stated otherwise)

As at Asat
Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Note:6
Cash and cash equivaleats
Cash on hand 2.56 3.47
Balances with banks
- in current accounts [,02,854.55 446.30
As per Balance Sheet 1,02,857.51 449.77
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

Note:7

Current tax assets (neft)

Balance with government authorities

Income tax recoverable - 72.99
[Net of provision for taxation Rs, Nit (Previous year

Rs. 12192.03 thousands )]

As per Balance Sheet - 72.99
As at As at
March 31. 2020 March 31,2019

Note:8
Other Current Assets
Unseeured, considered goed
Balances with Government authorities 8,135.39 8,196.21

As per Balance Sheet 8,135.39 8,196.21
Note:9
Equity Share Capital

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31,2019
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount

Authorised:
Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each 5.,00.000 5,000.00 5,00,000 5,000.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up:
Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 50,000 500.00 50,000 500.00

As per Balance Sheet 500.00 500,60

{a} Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity Shares As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31,2019
vty No. of Shares Amount Neo. of Shares Ameount

Shares outstanding at begining of the reporting year 50,000 500.00 50,000 500.00

Shares issued during the year - - - -

Shares bought back during the year - - - .

Shares outstanding at end of the reporting year 50,000 500.00 50,000 Qg}ﬂﬂ\\
”‘fg 2 A Y&

(b} Terms/ rights attached to equity shares: ' w[/ \

\{‘u.‘u fered )L_i
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs, 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote ‘s\hxa‘ﬁ:";’““ fan ?/ b
in the cvent of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after dlstrlbutlori of il ’

preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the munber of equity shares held by the shareholders. "o



Ibulls Sales Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(AN amount in Rs.thousands , unless stated atherwise)

Note:9
Equity Share Capital (continued)

(c) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Equity Shares No. of Shares o . No. of Shares o .
held % of Holding held % of Holding

Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each fully paid up

The entire share capital is held by Indiabulls Housing 50,000 i00% 50,000 100%
Finance Limited {"the holding Company"} and its
nominees

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders/ members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial
mlerest, the above sharcholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

(d) Employees stock option plans: (Refer Note: 37}

Note:10
Other equify:
Reserves and
o Surplus Henms of other
Description comprehensive Total
income
Retained carnings
Balance as at Aprif 61, 2018 97,781.59 - 97,781.59
Profit/ (Loss) [or the year 14,627.79 {116.33) 14511.46
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans through Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) (116.33) 11633 -
Balance as af March 31, 2019 1,12,293.05 - 1,12,293.05
Profit/(Loss) for the vear (4,909.23} (182.08) (5,091.31)
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans through Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax} (182.08) 182.08
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1,07,201.74 - 1,07,201.74

{a} Retained earnings

Retained eamings are the accumulated profits carned by the Company till date, less transfer to general reserves, dividend (including dividend distribution
1ax} and other distributions made to the shareholders.

(b} Hems of other comprehensive income
Changes in actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit plans are recogaised in other comprehensive income (net of taxes), and presented within equity
it other reserves.
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Ihulls Sales Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ¢nded March 31, 2020
(Al amount in Rs.thousands , unless stated otherwise)

Asat As at
AMarch 31. 2626 March 31,2019
Nete:11
Eong-term Provisions
(Refer Note: 32)
Provision for Gratuity 2,i49.685 2.113.27
Provision for Compensated Absences 504.88 606.49
As per Balance Sheet 2,654.83 2,719.76
Asat As at
March 31. 2020 March 31,2019
Note:§2
Other financial Babilitics
Temporary Overdrawn Batances as per books - 17.50
As per Balance Sheet - 17.50
Asut Asat

Note:13

Other current liabilities

March 31, 2020

March 31. 2019

Statutory Liabilitics 110.44 119.33
Expenses payable 54278 148.18
Other habilities 378.85 345.67
As per Balaoce Sheet 1,032.07 61318
As at As ai
March 31, 2026 March 31,2019
Note: 14
Short-term Provisions
{Refer Note: 323
Provision for Gratuity 7.14 57.27
Provision for Compensated Absences 2327 1553
As per Balance Sheet 70,41 7280
As at As at

Note:15

March 38, 2020

March 31,2019

Current tax Habilities (Net)}

Provision for taxation 353.71 102331
{Net of tax deducted at source and self assessment tax Rs. 8341.97
thousands (Previous vear Rs. 7671.70 thousands))

As per Balance Sheet 353.71 1,023.31

Chartepsg
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Ibulis Sales Limited
Notes to the financial stafements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{Alf amonnt in Rs. thousands, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note:16
Revenue from operations

Income from business auxilisry Services

As per Statement of Profif and Loss

Note: 17
Other Income

Interest on fixed deposits

Balances no Jonger required, written back

Provision for compensated absences no longer required, writien back
Interest on tnfercorposate deposit

Unrealised Encome / Gain on Current Investments

Profit on sale of Current Investments

As per Stateraent of Profit and Loss

Note: 18
Employee benefits expense

Salaries
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds
Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences [Refer Note: 32}

As per Statement of Profit and Loss

Note: 1Y
Finance cosis

Interest on Taxes

As per Statement of Profit and Loss

Ctartered S
ALEMInantg ph

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31,2019

2,71,500.60

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

28.48
93.87

6,193.38

2,71,500.00

6,315.73

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

34.64
8183
18.12
163.09
7.881.04

Tor the year ended
March 31, 2020

10,106.88
262,40
476.72

8,178.72

10,786.040

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

16,749.04
336.88
317.66

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

49.31

17,603.58

49.31

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

1.081.68

1,081.65




tbulls Sules Limited

Netes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Al amount in Rs. thowsands, excepr for shave data unless stated otherwise)

Note:20
Other expenses

Rates and taxes
Commamnication expenses

kegal and Prefessional Charges

Printing and Stationery

Payment (0 Auditors comprises
Audit Fees - as statutory auditor

Commission

Bank charges

Note;21
Inconie taxes expense

Tax expense comprises oft

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

64.38

As per Statement of Profit and Loss 263.91

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

31.54
.41

59.98
2087

75.00
2,40,004.00
2582

For the year ended
March 3§, 2020

2,40.214.12

For the year ended
Muarch 31, 2019

6,217.86
(83.28)

6,134.58

20,762.37

27.82%
5.776.09

300.92
188.85
(1.67)

(45.37)

(84.23)

Current tax (including carbier vears) 61.82
Deferred tax chargeA{credit) 106.92
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 168.74
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplicd by

Indin's tax rate

Profitf(loss) before tax from continuing operations (4,740.49)
india's stafutory income tax rate 25.168%
Computed expected tax expense (1,193.09)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating

taxable income:

Tax effect of expenses which are not deductible 11.81
Tax eftect of disallowances under the Income Tax Act, 1961 6.68
Tax effect of iewms pertaining to carlier years 61.82
‘Fax eftect of income not taxable {23.62)
Tax effect of income taxable at the time of its realisation 4537
Tax effect of carry forward losses (inctuding unabsorbed depreciation)} £,198.25
Others 13560
Tax effect of change in tax rate {74 09)
Income tax expense 168.74
Effective (ax rate -3.56%

(this space has intentionally been left Mank)
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1bulls Safes Lintited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts in Re. Thousands, unless otherwise stated

Note:22

As per the best estimate of the management, no provision is required 1o be made as per [ndian Accouming Standard 37- Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingeni Asscts as
specified under Section 133 of the Companits Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rudes, 2014, as amended, in respect of any present obligation as a result of a
past event that could lead to a probable outllow of resources, which would be required to seitle the obligaton.

Note:23
In the opinion of the Board of Directors, all current assets, loans and advances appescing in the balancs sheet as at Marcl 31, 2028 have a value on realizalion in the ordinasy cousse of

e Company’s business at leist equat to 1he ameum at which they are staked i the balance sheet and o provision is required 1o be made against the recoverability of these balances.

Note:24
The Company has not entered into any derivative instruments dusing the year. The Company does not have any forcign cutrency exposures as at March 31, 2020 (Previous year: Rs.
Ny,

Noie:25
Disclesures required under Section 22 of ihe Micre, SmaH and Medium Enterprises Develepment Act, 2006:

As ot
March 31, 2049

As i

Particub
articulars March 31, 2020

1) the principal amount and the interest due thercon rensining unpaid 10 any supplier as at 1he end of each

accounting yesr; Nil Ml
1t} the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of seciion 16, along with the amounts of the payment made
10 the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year, il il

iiithe amount of interest due and payabie for the period of' delay in making paymem (which have been paid but

i . f - - . . Nil Nil
beyord the appointed day dunng the year) bul withouwt adding the interest specified ender this Act;
) the amount of interest aecrued snd remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year, and Nil Nil
vithe amownt of further interest eemaining duc and payable everi in the succeeding years, unti such date wien
the intezest dues as above are actually paid 1o the small enterprise, for the purpase of disallowance as a
deductibie expenditure under section 23 Nil Nil

The above information regarding Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of mlormation avaitable with 1he
Company. This has been celied upon by the sudizors,

Note - 2¢
There are no borrowing cosss 1o be capitalised as at March 31, 2020 (Previous year: Rs. Nil).

Note -27
There are ne contingent Hakilities 1o be reported as at March 31, 2020 (Frevieus year: Rs. Nil).

Nole - 28
There are no capital and other commsitinents to be reporied as al March 31, 2020 (Previous year: s, Nif).

Note - 29
Financial instrunients

Firzncial assets and Habilitics
The canying amounts of financial instruments by category are as foffows:
Particufars No.Naote As at Asat
March 31,2028 March 31,2089

Financial assets measured st fair value
Investments measured at

Fair value twough profit and loss S - 1.57,638.09
Financiak x3sels measured at amortised rost
Cash and cash equivalents & 1,062,857 51 439,77
Total 1,02,857.51 1,08,087.36
Financial liabifities measiered at amortised cost
QOither financial liabililies 12 - 17.50
Toaad ~ 17.50

EFair values hicrearchy
Financizl assets and financial liabilities are measured 2t fair value in the financial statements and are grouped into three Levels of & fir value hiersrchy. The three Levels are defined
hased on the observahility of stgnificant ifnputs 10 the measurement, 25 lollows:

The categorics used arc as [oHows,

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadiusied) for identical nstruments in an active magket;

Level 2: Directiy (iLe. as prices) o1 indirectly {i.c. derived from pricesy observable market inputs, other than Level T inputs; and
Leved 3t Inpots which are nos based on observable market data {unobservable inputs)

Chartereqd
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Hinlls Sates Limited
Notes o 1k Tmancial statements for the year onded 31 March 2020
All amouats in Rs. Thousands, untess olherwise siated

B2

A

€y

Note - 29
Financial instruments {continued)

Fimanciaf assels and liabikities meastred at fair valee - recarring fair value measuremenis

As at March 31,2020 Period Level 1 Level 2 Lovel3 Tata!

Asseis

At fair vaioe through Profit and Loss

Investment in units of Mutual Funds 3 March 2620 - - - -
11 March 2619 1,07.638.09 - - §.07.638.00

Fair value of instrumeits nicasured at amtortised cost
Fair value of instruments measured at amorised cost for which fir value is disclosed is as follows, Lhese Fair values are calculated using Level 3 inputs:
Amoust in Hs.

As at March 31,2020 As at March 31,201%
Pasticalars Carrying value Fzir value Carrying value Fair value
Finuneial assets
Cask: and cash equivalents 1.02,857.51 1,02 857 51 443.77 449.77
Bt
Tota] 1,62.857.51 1,02,857.51 449,77 449,77
Financial Hehilities
Chher financial Babifities - - 17.50 17.50
Total - - 17,58 17.50

Valuation process and technique used to deferniine Gair value

Specific valuation technicues used to value financial instruments include -

(i) Respective carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, fargely due to the short term maturities of these instruments and close approsimation 1o fair values.

(it} The manggement assessed that fair values of other {inancial assets and other financial liabilities approximate their respective carrying amounts, fargely due to the short-term
matwilies of these instruments. .

(&) Use of et asset value for mutua! funds on the basis of the statemem received from investee parly.

Note - 30

Risk Manngement

The Company's activities expose it 10 market sisk, Bquidity risk and oredit nsk. The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishiment and oversigit of the
Company sk nanagement framework. The Company's risks are managed by a freasury department under policies appreved by the board of directors. The board of directars provides
writlen principles for overall risk management. This note explaing the sources of risk which the eatity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk and the related impact ir the
financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement  iManagement
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, investments and other | Ageing analysis {Highly sated bank deposits and diversification of assel base and
financial assets collaterals taken for assels
Liguidity risk Borrowings, rade payables sl other financial Cosh flow  {Commiited borrowing and other credit facilities and sale of logn assets
ligbilities, forecasts {whenever required)
Markel rigk - security price Investments in equity securities/ mutual funds Sensitivity | Bversification of portfolie, with foous on strategic investments
analysis

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidekines to focus on maintatning a diversified porifolic. Identilied
concentratiens of credit risks are controfled and managed aceordingly.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company's exposure to tredR risk is influenced mainly by cask and cesh vguivalents,
investments, lean assets, trade reccivabies and ather financial assers, The Company contivuously monitors defaults of customers and other countesparties and incorporales this
information inte ks credit sisk controls.

Credit risk management
‘Fhe Company assesses and manages credit risk based on intermal credit rating system. Intersal credii rating is performed lor each class of financial instruments with different

charscieristics. The Company assigns the following credit ratings to each lass of financial assels based on the sssuniptions, inputs and factors specitic to the class of fnancial assets
{1y Low credit risk

(1) Moderale credit risk

1) High credit risk

The company provides for expected credit loss based on the following.

Nature Assels eovered Basis of expected credit foss

Low credit risk Cash and cash cquivalents, investments and other financial assets 12 mantir expected credit Inss

f‘hzli‘fe;'c{j
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Thalls Sates Limited
Notes 1o 1he financial statemcents for the year ended 3§ March 2020
All amounts in B3, Thousands, unless othenwise stated

Note - 30
Risk Management {continnedy
Based on bustness environment in which the Company operates, a defaull on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fhils 1o make payments within the agreed time period

as per contract. Loss rates refleciing detaults are based on actual credit loss experience end considering diflerences botween current and historicst economic conditions.

Assels are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company continues ta engage with parties whose balances are writien off and atempts 10 enforce
yepaysenl, Recoveries made are recogmsed in statement af profit and loss.

Financial assels that expose {he cotity to eredit risk*

Particufars As at Asat
March 31 2020 March 31,2019
(i} Low credit risk
Investments - 1,07.638.09
Cash and cash cquivalents $,02.857.51 449 77

(i) Moderate eredit risk - -

(ki) Ftigh credit risk - -

* These represent pross camying values of Bnancial assets. without deduetion lor cxpected credit losses

Cash and gash equivalents
Credit risk related 1o cash and cash equivalents is managed by only accepling highly rated banks end diversilfying accounts i dilferent banks across the country.

b} Credit risk exposure

i) Expected crecdit bosses for financial nssets

Estimzated gross . . Carrying smount
§ E; led ered;
As at March 35,2020 carrying amount at xpclto:“:!‘t H net of impainment
default o provisian
Cash and eash cquivitients 1,02,857.51 - 1,02.857.51
Estimaled gross N . Carrying smeunt
Ay at March 31,2012 carrying amonnt ai prc;:(:;! :rcd;l ited of inrpairment
default s provision
Invesiments 1.07,63%.0% 1,07,638.09
Cash and cash equivalenls 449,77 - 444,77
1) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations assaciated with ils fmancial lsbilities that are settled by deliveding cash or another finzncial
assel. The Company's approach to wmanaging bquidity is to ensure as far as pessible. that it will have sufficient Gquidity to mect its fabilitics when they are due

DManagement moditors the Company's liquidisy positions snd cash and ¢ash equivalents on the basis ol expected cash Bows. The Company also takes into account liquidity of the market
in which the enlity operates

{i) Finamcing arcangements: The Company did not have any borrowings/financing arrsngements as at March 31, 2020 ( March 31, 2019 - Nil)

{ii} Maturities of finaecial assets and liahilities
The tables below analyse the Company financizl assets and lizbilfitizs imo relevant maturity groupings based on ther contractual maturilics.

Fhe amounts disclosed i the table 2re the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

As o March 31,2020 Lﬂi::‘i:n ! 1-2 year 2-3 year Maore than 3 years Total
Non-derivetives

Cash and casls equivaleats 1,02,857.51 1,02,857.51
Tatal uudiscounted financiaf assets 1.02,857.51 - - - 1.02,857,51
Non-derivatives

Cher linsnciat linbilities - - - - -
Total andiscaunted financial liabilitics - - - - .
Net undisconnted financial assetsiliabilitics) 1.02,857.51 - - - 1,62.857.51
As at March 31,2019 Lcsi:gl::l!l ! 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years Toinl
Non-derivatives

Investarents 1,07.638.00 - - - 10763800
Cash and cash equivalents 4,49,773.00 - - - 4.49.773.00
Totat wndiscennted financixl assels 3,57.411.09 - - - 55741109
Nou-derivatives

Other financial liabilities 17.50 - - - 17.5¢
Total undisconuted financial bliabilities 17,50 - - - 17.50
Net andiscounted financial asseisAlinbilities) £,57,393.59 - - - 5,57.393.59

Churtered
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iballs Sales Liited
Noates to the finuncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
All amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless otherwise stated

Note - 30
Risk Mauagement {continved)
) Market risk

a

Forcigi currency risk
‘The Company has not entered into any foreign currency transactions and is not exposed 10 foreign exchange risk ansing from recognised assets and Habililies denominated in a currency

that is net the lunctionat currency ol the Company. The Company did not have any foreign cusrency receivables and payables as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019
b} Interest rate risk
Liabilities
Company does not have any interest rate risks and therefore sensitivity analysis has not been shown

=5

i) Asvels
Company dees sl bave any as5:s in the naturg of interest rate risks and thercfore sensitivity analysis has not been shown.

e} Price risk
i) Faposare
The Company™s exposure price risk arises fram investments held and clazsified In the dalance sheet cither 2s fair value through other comprefensive income ar at fair value through
profil or loss. To manage the price sk

ising from investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets.

=

Seastlivily
As at March 31, 2620 and March 31, 2019, the Company did not have financial assets subject o price risk

Note - 31

Capital management

The Company's capital imanagement objectives are

- to ensure the Company's ability to continue as a going concern

- to provide art adequate retum Lo shareholders

Thie Company monitors capitai un the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash eguivaients a5 presented on the face of bafance sheet.

Management assesses the Company's capital Toquirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing strucusre while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes inte sccount the
subordinalion levels of Ihe Company's various classes of debr. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments ta it in the Bght of changes in cconomic conditions
and the risk charucteristics of the underlyieg assets, In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may sdjust the smount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capilal to shareholders, issue new shares, or seli assels to reduce debt.

Prrticulars As at Asat

March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Net debt* - R
Total equity 1,67,701. 74 1,112,795 05
Net debt Lo equity ratie - -

* Mot debl includes debt securities + borrowings other than debt securities + interest accrued - cash and cash equivalents.

Nole - 32
Deiails of Emplayec bencfits obligattons

1. Befined contributien plans

Provident Fend

BDuring the year ended March 31, 2020 the Company ias contributed Rs. 162.46 thousands (March 31, 2019 Rs. 333 60 thousands) in zespegt of provident fund and other Rands.
Contsibutions are made (o provident find for coployees ar the tare of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are imade 1o registered pravident fund adminisiered by
the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractial nor any constryciive obligation,

2. Defined henefit plans

A Grateily {mon-funded)
Tiw Compary provides for gratuily for employees in india as per the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972, Empleyees whe are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible ior
grataity, The amount of gratuily payable on retirement/termination s the ecmployees last drawn basic salary per month computed propoanionately for 15 duvs salary multiplied for the
number of years of service.

Rigks assaciated with plan provisions

Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salary increase rale assumption i future viluations will also increase the

Salary increases liability.
if Plan is [unded then assers Babilities miswwatel & actuai investment return on assets lower Lthan the discount rate assumed at the lagt valuation
Investment risk date can impact the labiliy,
Discount rate Reduction in di rate in subsequent valuations can increase Lhe plans liability
Mortality & disability Aclual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than sssumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities

Aclual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rales al subsequerst vatualions can impact
Withdrawals Plan’s Kability.

A
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1hulls Sales Linnted
Notes ta the Anancial sintcments for the year eaded 31 March 2020
All amounmis i Rs. Thowtands, unless otherwise stated

Note - 32
Details of Emplayee bewefits obligations {continued}

{i} Amounl recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

. Asat As al
Purticalars Mareh 31,2020 March 31,2019
Presemt value of obligation 2,197.09 217054
Fair vulue of plas asscts - -
Net ublipation reeognised in balance sheet as provision 2,197.0% 317054

(i) Amount recopnised in the sttement of profit and loss is as under:
Particalars For the year ended | For the year eaded
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Current service cost 302.64 281.23
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - -
Gaing or Losses on Non routiee seltlements - .
Interest cost on detined benefit obligation 174.09 143.21
Inicrest income on plai assers - -
iNet fmpact oo prefit (before tax} 47672 424,44
Actuarial (pain)loss 1 d during 1he vear 243.32 161.i6
Awmount recognised in the statement of profit and luss and otfer comprehensive income 720.64 585,59

sheed is a5 undler:

(iii) Movement in the present value of defined benefit eblization recopnised in the bal

Particulars

For the year ended
Muarch 31, 2020

Yar the year ended
Murch 31,2019

Fresent value of defined benefit obligation as st the beginning of year
Currenl service cost

Interest cost

Past setvice cost mchading cunallment gainslosses

Beneiits paid

Actuarial loss/(gain) on obfigation

Present vakue of defined benefil obligation as at the end of the year

2,170.54 1.657.82
302.64 8113
174.00 t43.21
(693.50) {72.87)
Actuarial (gain)loss on arising from: change in demographic assumptions [1d 3 .
Acluarizl (gain)/ioss on anising fron: change in inancial rssumptions 29711 5323
Actuarizl (gainy/loss on arising from experience adjustmenis {34072 107.93
2,197.0% 2,170.54

£iv) Majar eategories of plan asscts (as pereentage of toial plan assers):

Particubitrs

For the year ended
March 35, 2028

Tor the year ended
March 31,2019

CGoavernment of [rndia Securities
State Governmenl scountics
High (heality Corporste Bonds
Lquity Shares of'fisied companies
Propeny

Funds Managed by Insurer

Baak Balance

Total

{v) Movement in the plawr assels recognised in {he balance sheet is as under:

Particnlars

For the year ended
March 31, 2620

Faor the year ended
Mareh 31, 2019

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan asseis

Employer's contsibution

Benefits paid

Fair value of pina assets 2t 1he end of the year

(vi) Acluarial i
- For ihe year ended For the year ended

Farticwlars Marcls 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Discounting rate 686 7.65
Future salary icrease 6406 .00
Retirement age (years} 60.00 60,00
Withdrawal mte

Up tor 30 years 3.400 300

From 31 to 44 years 200 2.00

Above 44 years 140 1.00
Weinhied average duration of PRO 1625 17.93

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of IALM (2012-14} {Previous year: 100% of JALM (2006-08)1

Gratvity is payable 1o the empleyees on death or resignation or on retireient a1 the sttainment of superannuation age. To provide for these eventualities, the Actuary las used Indian

Assured Lives Moriality (2012-[4) {Previous year: (2006-08)] Ultimate table

Chartered
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Ehulks Sakes Limited
Notes to the financial statements for (he year ended 31 March 2020
At amounts in Rs. Thousands, unless othenvise siated

Nute - 32
Details of Employee benefits ohligativas (continued)

(vit} Seusitivity avalysis for gratuity Jiability

Particulars

For the year cnded
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 33, 2019

Empact of the change In discouns rate

frresent value of obligation st the end of' the year 2,197.09 2,370.54
- Impact due to increase of (.50 % (162.13) (161.02)
- linpact due to decrease of 0.50 % 1719.63 i78.60
Impact of the change in salary increase
Prescal value of oblipation at the end of the year 1197.09 2,170.54
- Iingract dug 1o ingrease of 0.50% 180.18 180.63
- Impact due to decrease of’ 0.50 % {ic4.07 {164.14)
Semsitivities due 10 montafity and withdrawals are nol materat and hence impact of change due to these is not calculaled
Sensitivities as to rate of increase of pensions i payment, rate of incrense of pensions belore retiremeant and iife expeclancy are not applicable,

{viii} Maturity profile of defimed herefit obligati
Particolars As at As at

March 31,2020 March 35,2019

Gie §year 4734 511
1t 2 year 86,20 43 .60
2t 3 year 10i.62 41.86
3to 4 year 4476 40.76
4 to 5 year 4289 37,69
5to 6 yoar 4014 3704
6 vear pnwards 1.834.31 1.862.39

)

(i}

iy

Expecred contribusion for the next annual reporting period: Rs.447.52 thousands (March 31, 2019 Rs. 488 56 thousands)

Compensated absences (non-funded)

Compensated sbsences are payable to employees at the rate of daily salacy for each day of accumulated leave on death or on resignation or upon retirement.

Risks assecisted with plan previsions

Salary incrcases _
Hability.

Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salary merease rate assumption in future valuations will alse increase the

lavestment risk dare can impact the abiliy,

1€ Pan is fusded then assets labililics mismatch & aclual investment retizm on assels fower than the disconm rate assurned 21 the last valuation

[Discount rare

Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's lishiliey

Mortality & disability

Actual desths & disability cases proving Iower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the Rabilities,

Withdrnwals

Actual witldrawals proving higher ar lower thar assumed withdriwals and change of wishdrawval rates al subsequent valuations cun impact

Blan's Hability.
Ameunt recognised in the balance sheet is as under:
Particnlars As at As at
March 3i.2020 March 38,2019
Presen value of ebligation 528,15 62202
Fair value of plan assets - -
Net obligation recognised in balance sheet as provision 528,15 622,02

Amouat recognised iy the stitement of profit and Foss is as umler:

Particulars For the year ended 31} YFor the year ended
March 2020 31 March 2019
Current service cost 7513 87.27
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - -
Gains or Eosses on Nen routive seitcinents - -
interest cost on defined benelit obligation 45,19 44.80
fnterest income on plan assels - -
Actuanal {pain)foss recognised dunng the vear (214,19 {38.84)
et impact on profit (before tnx} [EXR X)) 93.23
Amonnt recognised in the statemens of profit amd foss and other cemprehiensive incone {33.87) 93.23

Movement in the present vialue of defined benefit obligation recoguised i the balance sheet is as amler:

Particelars

Far the year ended 31
March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginnbig of year 62202 52819
Current service cost 75,13 $7.27
interest cost 45,19 44,80
Past service cost including cunailmen gainsSosses - -
Benefits paid - -
Actusnal loss/(gain) on obligation

Actuarial (gain)loss on ansing [fom change i demographic essumption 037 -

Actuarial {gain}floss on arising from change i financial assumption 737 12.65

Actuarial (gainMloss on arising fram experience adiustaient (285 93) {3149}
Present value of defined henefit oblization as at the emd of the year 328.15 622,62
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Ihulkx Safes Limited
Notes to the financial statements for ke year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts in Ry, Thousands, unless otherwise stated

Noie - 32
Betails of Employee benefits obligations (continued)

{iv) Major categories of plan assets {as perceniage of total plan asseis):

Particulars

¥or the year caded 31
March 2026

Far the yoar ended
3 March 2009

Government of India Securitics
Staie Government sccuritics
High Quality Corporaie Bonds
Equity Shares of listed companies
Property

Funds Managed by Insurcr

Bank Baknce

Total

{¥} Movenent in the pian assets d in the balance sheet is a8 wnder:

Particulars

For the vear ended 31
March 2020

For Ihe year ended
31 March 2019

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets

Employer's contribution

Benelits paid

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

(vi) Actuoyrisl assumptions

Parficulzrs

For the year ended 3§
March 020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

[iscounting rate 680 165
Future salary increase 6.00 600
Relirement age (years) 60.00 6G.00
Weighted average duration of PBO 1625 1793
Withdrawal rate
Up 10 30 years EEvi] 3.00
From: 31 Lo 44 years 00 2.00
Above 44 years LO0 1.060
Leave
Leave avaiiment rate % 5%
Leave tapse rate whils w service - -
Leave lapse rate on exit - -
Leave encashment rate while in service - -
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disabitity -100% of LALM (2012-14} {Previous year: 100% of TALM (2006-08))
(vii) Sensitivity analysis for compensated absences
Particulars For the year encbed 3| For the year ended

Msrch 2020

31 Minrch 2059

Impact of the chauge in discount rate

Present value of ohligation at the ¢nd of the year 52815 62202
- Impact duc 1o increase of 0.50 % (39.63) {47 46)
- Entpact due 19 decrease of 0.50 % 43,54 52,65
Impact of ike change in salary imcrease
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 52415 62202
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 %% 4373 5325
- Impaet due ta decrease ol 0.56 % (39.84) {18.37)
Sensitivitios duc 10 mertality and withdrawals are not maleriat and hence impact of change due 10 these is not caleulated
Sensitivities as to rate of increase of pensions in payment, rase of increase of pensions before and life ex y are noi applicable.

vtk Maturity profile of defincd benefit obligation Mar::;l‘,z(}m Mat‘c‘?ls;ll.mw
Oto i year 2327 1553
1 to 2 year 1015 1259
2 to 3 year 1006 1203
3 104 year w69 2697
4 lo 5 year 9.08 10.82
5106 year 164 16,29
G year ouwards 457.26 53350

Expected contribution for the next annual reporting period: Rs,109.72 thousands (Mareh 31, 2019: Rs. 141,00 thousands)

Note -33
Sepnrent reporting:

The Company eperates in a single operating sexment of acting as commission agent and to pravide related business auxilliary services. No further disclosures are required in respect of

reportable segments, other than those already provided in the financial statements,
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Ihulls Sates Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
All amounts in Rs. Theusands, ualess otherwise stated

Note - 34
Related party disclosurcs
(a) Names of related parties identified in accordance with IND AS -24 "Related Party Disclosures” (with whom there were transactions during the year)

The Company’s principal related parties consist of its helding company, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited and its subsidizries, affitiates and key manageriat
personnel. The Company’s material related party transactions and outstanding balances are with related partics with whom the Company routinely enter into
transactions in the ordinary course of business.

Description of relationship
{i) Where control exists
Holding Company

Names of refated parties

Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited

Indiabw!ls Insurance Advisors Limited

Nitgiri Financial Consultants Limited

(Subsidiary of Indiabulls Insurance Advisors Limited)
Indiabulls Advisory Services Limited

indiabulls Asset Holding Company Limited
indiabulls Cotlection Agency Limited

Endiabulls Commercial Credit Limited#
(Formerly known as Indiabulls infrastructure Credit Limited )

Indiabulls Asset Management Mauritius (w.e.f. July 18,2016)

Fellow Subsidiary Companies {Subsidiary of Indiabulls Commerciat Credit Limited)

(including step down subsidiaries)/ Entitics under | Indfabulis Capital Services Limited

common control Indiabulls Trustee Company Limited

Indiabulls Asset Management Company Limited

Indiabutls Venture Capitat Management Company Limiteg

(Subsidiary of Indiabulls Heldings Limited)

Indiabulls Venture Capitat Trustee Company Limited (up to March 08, 2019)
(Subsidiary of Indiabubls Holdings Limited)

Indiabulls Holdings Limited

Indiabufls Housing Finance Limited-Employee Welfare Trust (w.e.F. December 03,2019)
IBHFL Lender Repayment Trust (w.e.f. Aagust 17,2017}

ICCL Lender Repayment Trust { w.e.f. April 2, 2018)

it} Other related parties

Acorn QakNerth Holdings Limited (w.e.f. November 13, 2015)
{formerly known as (JakNorth Holdings Limited}

Mir. Akash Malik ~ Director

Mr. Ravi Dutt Sharma - Director

Mr. Ajay Siwach — Director

Mr. Nareider Singh Arya -~ Director (up to August 23, 2018}

Associzte of Holding Company

Key Management Personnel

#The Board of Disectors of Indiabulls Finance Company Private Limited (“IFCPL™ and Indiabubls Commercial Credit Limited (“FCCL™) (formesly Indisbulls
Infrastructure Credit Limited) af their meeting held on April 16, 2015 had approved, the merger of IFCPL, on an ongoing basis, into ICCL, pursuant to and in teems of
the provisions of Section 391 - 394 of the Companics Act, 1956, as amended from time to time. The appointed date of the proposed merger fixed under the Scheme was
Aprit OF, 2015, The Hon'ble High Court of Delhi, vide its order dated March 15, 2016, received by ICCL on March 31, 2016, approved the Scheme {Order). In tenns of
the court approved Scheme, with the filing of the copy of the Order, on March 31, 2016 with the office of RQC, NCT of Delhi & Haryana (the Effective Dale), the
Scheme came into effect and IFCPL, 15 a going coneern, stands amalgamated with 1CCL with effect from the Appointed Date, being April 01, 2015, Subsequentty the
Board of Direclors of CCL, on March 31, 2016, issued and allotted Equity Shares of ICCL to the holders of Equity Shares of IFCPL, in the ratio of 31 i.¢ the Shars
Exchanpe Ratio, fixed under the Scheme.

{b} The nature and velome of transactions carried out with the above related parties in the ordinary course of business are as follows :

() Significant traogactions with related parties:

Nature of Transaction 1lolding Company Total

Expenses

Commission expenses

2,40.000.00

2,40,000.06

{d) Statement of material transactions:

For ihe year

For the year

Particulars ended eaded
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020
Expenses
Commission_expenses
- Indizbutls Housing Finance Limite: - 2,40,000,00

() Balances outstanding at year end: Rs, Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil)
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Ibulls Sales Limited
Notes to the foancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Note - 35
Earnings per share:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31,2020

For the year ended
March 31,2019

Net Profit/{foss) for the year (4,909.24) 14,627.78
Weighted average number of equity shares for comptation of Basic EPS 50,000 50,000
Basic earning per share {In Rs.) (98.18) 292.56
Weighted average number of equity shares for computation of Diluted EPS 50,00G 50,00G
Diluted earning per share (In Rs.) {G8.18) 292.56

Note - 36

The outbreak of COVID-19 virus continees to spread across the globe including India, resulting into a significant dectine and volatility in firancial markets and a
significant decrease in globat and India’s economic activities. The Govesnment of Tndia announced a strict 40-day nation-wide lockdown to contain the spread of
the virus till May 3, 2020, which was further extended till June 08, 2020. Fhis has led to significant disruptions and dislocations for individuals and businesses.
The recent directions from Gaovernment ajtows for calibrated and gradual withdrawal of lockdown and partial resumption of selected economic activities. The
extent 1o which the COVID 19 pandemic will impact the Company’s business is dependent on several factors including, but not limited to, pace of easing of the
lockdown restrictions. There has been no material change in the controls or processes followed in the closing of these financiat statements of the Company.

The Company has assessed the impact of the pandemic on its operations and its assets including the value of its finaacial assels as at March 3, 2020. The
managemerd does 1o, at this junciare, believe that the impact on the value of the Company’s assets i likely (o be material, However, since the situation is rapidly
evolving, its effect on the operations of the Company may be difterent fiom that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. Fhe Company
will continue to closely monstor material chanpes in markets and futiire econemic conditions.

(this space has intentionally been tefi Mank)
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Hrutis Sales Limited

Naotes to ihe Auascial statements for the year ended 3§ Maech 2020

Aft amennes in R, Thousends, wless otherise staied

Nate -37

Employees Stock Qptions Plans/ Schemes (ESQOMESQS Sclieimes) of Indiabulls Honsing Finunce Limited (“the Bolding Company” “IHFL");

{i} Granis During the Yenasr:

There has been no nesw grants of Esops during she corrent financiad year(Previous year 10,000,000 Esops)

(i) Emplayve Stock Benedit Schenre 2009 (“Scheme™).
The Scheme has been adopted and approved pursuant to: (a) a resolution of the Board of Directors of INDIABULLS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED at iss meeting field on Movember 6, 2089, and (b} a special
resolution of the shareholders® of the Company passed through postal batlet on December 23, 2019, result of which were declored on Decernber 24, 2019,

This Scheme comprises:

a. INDIABULLS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (*ESGP Plan 20{9™)
b. INDIABULLS HQUSING FINANCE LIMITED Employees Slack Purchase Plan 2019 (“ESP Plan 2018™)
<. INDIABULLS HOUSING FINANCE LIMITED Stack Appreciation Rights Plan 2619 (“SARs Flan 2019")

Inn uecordance with the ESOP Regulations, Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited had set up Indiabulls Housing Finance Limited Emplyee Welfare Trust {Trust) for the purpose of imptementstion of ESOP Scheme. The
Scheme is administered through ESOP Trust, whereby shares held by the ESOP Trust are transferred to the employees, upon exercise of sieck aptions as per the terms of the Scheme

tiii} The other disclosuves in respect o the ESOS / ESOP Schemes sve as under:-

JHFL-IBFSL

IHFL-1BFSL

NiEL-IBESI,

[HFE-1BESE,

VFL-IBFSL,

IHFL-IDFSL

IHFL-1BESL

{Weinlited Months)

- : ; . N . B R _| Emplovees | Emplovees | Employees Employees | Employees
Particalars £ lowtz_s Easuly t_e_?s INEL.ESDS, ""'I_‘ ESUS 1i2EL. E.SOS HIELESOS Stock Option | Stock Option | Stock Option | Stock Option | Stogk Option
Stock Qption | Stock Ontion 2043 ZUE3 pirii] 2013
Plag 1] — 2006 1008 b T e e —2008 =2008- Plan —2006-! -2008. |Plan 112006
— - e et e e ol Lo LS LS LSS
E— I -Regrant Reprant Regrant Reprant -Regrant
Toat Options undet the Scheme 7.20.000 7500000 ¢ 3.90,06000 1 3,90,00,000 | 3.90.00,000 |  3,90,00,000 N.A. N.A, N.A, N.A. M.A.
?’]‘“} Oplioms issued under the 7200008 7500000} 10500000 { 1,0500,000 1,00,000 | 1,00,00,800 NA. N.A. N.A. N.A. NA.
ZCHCMC
Ten years,15%
Four First year, 10%|  Five years. Five years, Five years, Five years,
Vasting Period and Pescontage years,25% | for next cight 20% 0% 0% 20% NA N.A. NA. N.A NA.
cach year years and 5% each year eich yeur each year each year
in last year
15t November | 8th December, | 12th Getober, 1 12th August, | 25th March, 10sh March, Dcc]e]ni[ber Hoth July 27th August, | |1k January, | 271h Aupust,
2 2 : ! 2
First Vesting Date , 2008 2009 2015 2018 2019 2020 2010 L2011 00 012 2010
Nine
years, | 1%
Revised Yesling Period & each year for 8 Ten years, 10%{Ten years, 10%Ten years, 10%| Ten years, 10%5fTen years, 10%%
N.A. MN.A, N.A. N.A N.A
Percentage years and 12% for every year { for every year | for every year | for every year | for every year
during the Sth
year
Exercise Price {s.) 100.00 95.95 394.75 1.156.5¢ $,200.40 702,00_ 12590 138.50 95.95 153.65 106,00
5yesrs from | Syears from | 5yearsfrom | S years from | 5 years from | 5years from | 5 years from | 5 years from | 5 years from | S years frons | S years from
Exercisable Pericd each vesling | cach vesting | cach vesting | cach vesting | cach vesting | cach vesting | cach vesling | each vesting | cach vesting | ecath vesting | esch vesting
date date date ‘date date date date date date date date
?‘i:;i‘:i”)‘g atthe beginning of the L1s2 70,676 4025556  1,03,36,500 - | reocooce £5,000 18,380 19,500 3,000 21,900
&4 .
Regrant Additian N.A NA N.A M.A N.A. NA, N.A N.A. MNA N.A. N.A
December 31, i
N.A N.A N.A N.A NA Nal 2000 J‘;'S,'{f‘ A“;';;;N' j“":g?'l 1 A“f:;';‘?'
Regprant Date -
: —
&"(‘)‘;‘;‘s vesied during the year ; ; 20,04,000 . . . 6390 19,440 39,500 1,500 21,908
L} 3
Exercised during the vear {Nos.) - 54,812 1,011,800 - - 4,140 - - - N
Expred duning the year (Nos.) - - - - - - - - - - -
Cancelled dyring the year - - - - - - - - . . R
Lapsed during the yvear - 0 1,.24.000 26,121,500 - 31,417,600 o - - - -
Re-granted during the vear - - - NA A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A N.A
ing 2 f thy
&“{'}i‘;‘"&'"g at the end of the yeor 1,152 15,864 3759756 | 7724000 - 68,82,490 10,890 38,380 39,500 3,000 21,900
:‘g;c;s"bk atthe end of the year 1,152 15,864 37,809,756 19,531,000 - - 10,850 19,440 9,500 1,500 21,900
Remaining conlractual Life ™ 30 16 & NA 85 50 57 53 63 53

MN.A - Not Applicable

fiv) The details of the Fair value of the options as delermined by an Endependent firm of Chartered Accountants, for the respective plans using the Black-Scholes Merton Optien Pricing Model:-
{HFL - 1HFL - HiFL - EHFL - MFL - 6L -
HBFSL TBESL iBFSL - 1BFSL 1BFSL IBFSL IHFL ESOS - | IIIFL ESOS - { IHFL ESOS - [ INFL ESOS -
Employees | Bwployees | Ewpliyees | Eaployees | Euployees | oL 2013 2013 2013 w013
Stock Option | Stock Option | Stock Option § Stock Option | Stock Option Stack Optign |  (Grant 1) (Grant 2 (Grant 3} (Gram )
- 2008 -2008 — 1006~ Pinn 11-2006{ - 2008 - 2008
Pasticalars Rezrant Tlegrant Regrant Regraint Regrant
Exercise price {Rs.) 123.50 158.50 9595 104.00 153.65 95.95 39475 1,156.50 1,200.40 702.00
Expected volatility* 99.61% 99.60% 715.51%4 75.57% 90.60% 97.00% 46.30% 27.50% 27.70% 33.90%
Expected forfeilure percenitage on
axeh vesting date Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Mil Nil Nil Nit Nil
Option Life (Weizhted Average) %.80 Yrears 9.80 Years .80 Years 9.80 Yerrs 9.80 Years 1§ Years 5 Years 3 Years 3 Years 3 Years
Expected Dividends yield 119% 2.89% 4.69% 4.50% 2.98% 4 62% 10.000% 5.28% S08% 1.65%
Weighted Average Fair Value (Rs))
83.48 90.24 106.3 $0R.06 34.93 52492 39.76 200.42 22622 126.96
Risk Free laterest rate 7.59% 7.63% 7.50% 1.5%% 1635 6.50% 8.57% 6.51% 7.56% 7.37%

*The expected velatilily was detersnined based on historical volatility data

{v) 18,527 342 Equity Shaores of Rs. 2 each {Previous Year : 24,552,194) are reserved for issuance townrds Employees Stock options as granted.

(vi} The weighted average share price al the date of exercise of these options was Rs. 682.59 per share(Previcus year is. 782.49 per share).
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[bulls Sales Limited
Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 20

Note - 38
In respect of amounts as mentioned under Section 124 of the Cuimpaaies Act, 2013, there were no dues required to be credited to the Investor
Education and Protecticn Fund as on March 3, 2020 {Previous year: Rs. Nil).

As per our report of even date
For Ajay Sardana Associates For and on behalf of thelBoard of Directors of
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